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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of HREL Real Estate Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of HREL
Real Estate Limited (“the Company"”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2022 and the Statement of Profit and Loss(including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements do not give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

As stated in Note 27 to the accompanying financial statements, which indicate that
the Company has accumulated losses of Rs. of Rs.1,12,062.62 lakhs (Previous Year :
Rs. 1,12,370.35 lakhs), resulting in negative net worth of Rs.50,822.39 lakhs
(Previous Year: Rs 51,130.12) as at 31st March, 2022. The Company’s current
liabilities exceeds its current assets by Rs.57,583.73 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.
57,577.20 lakhs) as at that date which has resulted in complete erosion of the net-
worth of the Company.

Further, the Company has additional obligations towards corporate guarantee and put
option right given by the Company as mentioned in Note 22(iii) of the financials, which
is likely to further increase the net loss, accumulated losses and net current liabilities
by Rs.6,06,964.65 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 5,76,470.00 lakhs). Considering such
factors and in the absence of necessary and adequate evidence with respect of the
Company’s assessment of going concern, as per our judgement, management’s use
of going concern basis of accounting in the financial statements is inappropriate.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
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Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
- audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our adverse opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to Note 19(iii) to the accompanying financial statements,
the Company had provided corporate guarantees and put options aggregating
Rs. 6,06,964.65 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. Rs. 576,470.00 lakhs) to the lenders
of its erstwhile subsidiaries, Lavasa Corporation Limited (LCL) and Warasgaon
Assets Maintenance Limited (WAML) in respect of amounts borrowed by these
entities. LCL and WAML were admitted under the Corporate Insolvency and
Resolution Process (CIRP) in accordance with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (IBC) dated 30 August 2018 and 20 December 2018, respectively
and Resolution Professionals (RP) were been appointed by the Committee of
Creditors (CoC) of the lenders of respective companies. The lenders, to whom
these corporate guarantees and put options were furnished, have filed their
claims with Resolution Professional and have also invoked the corporate
guarantee/ put options issued by the Company. The National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide its order dated 26 February 2020, have approved
the request of lenders of LCL and WAML to consolidate LCL, WAML and Dasve
Convention Centre Limited (a subsidiary of LCL) and thereby get better
valuation on liquidation. The Resolution Professional is in the process of
formulating a resolution plan including identifying potential resolution
applicant. The liability of the Company shall be determined once the debts due
to these lenders are settled by Resolution Professional upon completion of the
IBC process. Pending the outcome of the resolution process, no provision has
been made in the financial statements by the management stating that the
impact, if any is currently unascertainable.

2. Certificates/Confirmations were not available from Banks for Bank Balances
amounting to Rs.0.44 (Previous Year Rs. 0.44) lakhs as on 31st March, 2022.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.



In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Annual Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually




or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably



be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

1.

b).

c)

d)

f)

Based on our audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section
197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued

by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

. Except for the effects of the matter described in the basis for Adverse Opinion

section of our report, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of changes in
equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The matter described in paragraph 3 under the Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern paragraph, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

a. On the basis of the written representations received from the management as
on March 31, 2022, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by
the company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities
(“"Intermediaries”), with the understanding that the intermediary shall whether
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

b. On the basis of the written representations received from the management as
on March 31, 2022, no funds have been received by the company from any



person(s) or entities including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the
understanding that such company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the below representations given by the
management contain any material mis-statement.

g) No dividend were declared/paid during the year by the Company, therefore

question of compliance of section 123 of the Act does not arise.

h) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March

i)

31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “"Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There has not been an occasion in case of the company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.
The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, no remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during the year so
the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

(Note: Due to COVID-19 Pandemic Lockdown and other restrictions imposed by the
Government and local administration, the audit processes were carried out based on



the remote access to the extent available/feasible and necessary records
made available by the management through digital medium, without physically
verifying at their office.)

FOR U B G & Company
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 141076 W

CA Gaurav J. Parekh

Partner

Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai, Dated: 02 May 2022
UDIN: 22140694AILLZY5367




Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of HREL Real Estate Limited
for the Year ended as on 315t March 2022

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report on even date:-

(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

B. The Company has no intangible assets as on 31st March 2022. Therefore

(b)

()

(d)

(&)

the paragraph 3(i)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

All property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year, and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets.

Company does not own immovable properties and hence paragraph 3(i)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

There was no revaluation been done by the company of its property, plant
and equipment (including the right of use assets) or intangible assets or
both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the books of accounts, there are no proceedings
initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

The Company does not have any Inventory. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)
of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to eight company covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act”).

a. In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the
loans had been granted to the body corporate listed in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

b. The schedule of repayment of principal and the payment of the interest has not
been stipulated and hence we are unable to comment as to whether
- repayments/receipts of the principal amount and the interest are regular; and



vi.

vii.
a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

c. In the absence of stipulation with regard to repayment of principal and payment
of interest, we are unable to comment on the overdue interest amounts for more
than 90 days in respect of the loan granted to a body corporate listed in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Act, and whether reasonable steps
have been taken by the company for recovery of the principal amount and
interest.

. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments,
guarantee and securities, which attracts compliance to the provisions of the sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the paragraph 3(iv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be

deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the
rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company.

We have been informed that the Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the Goods
provided and Services rendered by the Company, which has been relied upon.

examination of the books of accounts, the Company has been generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods & service tax, provident
fund, employee state insurance, income tax, service tax, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities. As on
31st March 2022, undisputed statutory dues payables for period exceeding for a
period more than six month from the date they become payable are as follows.

Statement of arrears of statutory dues for more than six months

Name of | Nature of | Amount Period to | Due date | Date of
the the dues (INR in | which the Payment
statute Lakhs) amount

reiates
Income Interest on | 19.88 March 2018 | 30t April, | Not paid till
Tax Act, | TDS Lakhs to 2018 date
1961 November

2018

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the cases of statutory

dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of
dispute are as follows:
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

Name Nature | Amount Amount paid :;?:;tt:e Forum where
of the | of the _(INR under_ Protest STRcnt dispu_te is
statute | dues in Lakhs) | (INR in Lakhs) relates (FY) pending
Income | Income 2.41 g 2005-06 CIT(Appeals)
Z‘;‘ Pgﬁ:i{y 41.86 _ 2008-09 CIT(Appeals)
1961 133.57 ; 2009-10 CIT(Appeals)
1,095.41 = 2010-11 Bombay High Court
2,103.04 69.77 2011-12 CIT(Appeals)
967.19 107.00 2012-13 CIT(Appeals)
771.49 86.00 2013-14 CIT(Appeals)
595.02 ) 2016-17 CIT(Appeals)
3972 85 - 2017-18 CIT(Appeals)

There are no transactions being not recorded in the books of account and that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

. The Company has not taken term loans from any lender during the year, hence

paragraph 3(ix) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and the term loan during the year. Hence reporting
under this clause 3(x) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management which
have been relied by us, there were no frauds on or by the Company noticed or
reported during the period under audit.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
Further, in our opinion, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee
under Section 177 of the Act.

a. The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business;




XV.

XVi.

XVii.

Xviii.

XiX.

XX.

Partner N,
Membership No.: 140694 JEDACES
Mumbai, Dated: 02 May 2022
UDIN: 22140694AILLZY5367

b. The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by
the statutory auditor;

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year therefore,
reporting under the said clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities amount to Rs. 51,839.43 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 51,834.01
Lakhs) payable on account of Related party loans & ICDs existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding spending on CSR is not applicable
to the Company. Therefore, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

FOR U B G & Company
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 141076 W

Gaurav J. Parekh : "«L 14107¢



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HREL Real
Estate Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The




procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that
could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Adverse Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting as at 31st March 2022;

The Company’s internal controls over financial reporting with respect to financial
statements closure process in terms of assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern were not operating effectively, which is likely to result in material
misstatements in the carrying value and classification of assets and liabilities and have
a consequential impact on earnings, reserves and related disclosures in the financial
statements.




A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination or deficiencies, in internal
financial control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements
will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting as on 31st March, 2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, and because of the possibie effects of the material
weakness described above on the achievements of the objectives of the control
criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting were not
operating effectively as on 31st March, 2022.

(Note: Due to COVID-19 Pandemic Lockdown and other restrictions imposed by the
Government and local administration, the audit processes were carried out based on
the remote access to the extent available/feasible and necessary records
made available by the management through digital medium, without physically
verifying at their office.)

FOR U B G & Company
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 141076 W

CA Gaurav J. Parekh
Partner

Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai, Dated: 02 May 2022
UDIN: 22140694AILLZY5367




HREL Real Estate Limited
(formerly known as HCC Real Estate Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

Particulars Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 0.87 1.00
Financial assets
Investments 4 1,951.33 1,951.33
Loans 5 2,760.74 2,760.74
Other financial assets 6 - £
Income tax assets (net) 7 2,048.40 2,048.40
Other non-current assets 8 - -
Total non-current assets 6,761.34 6,761.47
Current assets
Inventories 9 - -
Financial assets
Investments L 4 0.50 0.48
Cash and cash equivalents 10 0.44 0.44
Loans 5 2.16 2.16
Other current assets 8 122.10 115.75
Total current assets 125.20 118.84
TOTAL ASSETS 6,886.54 6,880.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 1 6,619.32 6,619.32
Other equity (57,441.71) (57,749.44)
Total equity (50,822.39) (51,130.12)
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12 - -
Other financial liabilities 13 - "314.40
Other non-current liabilities 15 - -
Total non-current liabilities - 314,40
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12 20,090.46 20,090.41
Trade payables 14
Dues of micro, small and medium enterprises - -
Dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 50.44 42.71
Other financial liabilities 13 37,548.39 37,543.03
Other current liabilities 15 19.64 19.88
Total current liabilities 57,708.93 57,696.03
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,886.54 6,880.31

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements
3

;’{his is the Balance Sheet referred to in our audit report of even date

For UB G & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regisfyation No: 141076W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B J,,pb% V

urav J. Parekh

Partner ?
Membership No.: 140694 /"

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd May 2022

Sridevi lyengar
Director
DIN No:- 06981630

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd May 2022

Inderpal Singh
Director
DIN No:- 08808066

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd May 2022



HREL Real Estate Limited
({formerly known as HCC Real Estate Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs)
Income
Revenue from operations - -
Other income 16 321.02 490.88
Total income 321.02 490.88
Expenses
Depreciation expense 3 0.13 0.18
Other expenses 17 13.16 10.16
Total expenses 13.29 10.34
Loss before exceptional item and tax 307.73 480.54
Exceptional items -
Profit before tax 307.73 480.54
Tax expense
Current income tax . -
Deferred income tax e -

Profit for the year (A) 307.73 480.54
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (B) - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (A+B) 307.73 480.54
Loss per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each
Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 18 0.46 0.73

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our audit report of even date
For U B G & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants
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Director
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HREL Real Estate Limited
(formerly known as HCC Real Estate Limited)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax 307.73 480.54
Adjustment for:
Depreciation expense 0.13 0.18
Dividend income (0.02) (0.04)
Notional income from financial guarantees given (314.40) (490.84)
Deposits written off - 0.62
Provision written back (6.60) -
Impairment on loans/Receivables 8.42 0.31
Operating profit before working capital changes (4.74) (9.23)
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (6.34) (1.99)
Increase in other current liabilities (0.24) (0.22)
Decrease in trade payables 59 (1.87)
Operating profit after working capital changes (5.41) (13.31)
Income taxes (paid)/ refund - -
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (5.41) (13.31)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans and advances received - 0.53
Loans and advances given - (0.55)
Receipt from security deposit S =
Dividend received - -
Net cash generated from investing activities (B) - (0.02)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings - (0.18)
Proceeds from borrowings 5.41 13.52
Finance cost on borrowings - -
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 5.41 13.34
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) - 0.02
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.12 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 3 below) 0.12 0.12

Notes:

1) The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7)

“Statement of Cash Flows.

2) Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Balance of Cash and cash equivalents as above 0.12 0.12
Add: Bank account attached by income tax authorities 0.33 0.33
Balance of Cash and cash equivalents as per note 10 0.45 0.45

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our audit report of even date

For UB G & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No: 141076W

Gaurav J. Parekh
Partner
Membership No.: 140694

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd May 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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Sridevi lyengar
Director
DIN No:- 06981630
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Date: 2nd May 2022

Inderpal Singh
Director
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HREL Real Estate Limited
(formerly known as HCC Real Estate Limited)
Statement of Chanaes in Equitv for the vear ended 31 March 2022

A) Equitv share capital

Particulars Number (Rs. in lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each subscribed and paid up

As at 31 March 2020 6,61.93.185 6,619.32
Issue of equity shares during the year - -
As at 31 March 2021 6,61.93,185 6,619.32
Issue of equity shares during the year - -
As at 31 March 2022 6,61,93,185 6.619.32

B) Other equity

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Deemed equity Reserve and surplus Total equity
investment by Securities premium Retained attributable to
holding company reserve earninas equity holders |
As at 31 March 2020 13.803.92 40,816.99 (1,12,850.89) {58.229.98)
Deemed distribution/ repayment - -
Profit for the vear - - 480.54 480.54
As at 31 March 2021 13.803.92 40.816.99 (1.12,370.35) (57.749.44)
Deemed distribution/ repayment - -
Profit for the vear - - 307.73 307.73
As at 31 March 2022 13.803.92 40.816.99 (1.12,062.62) (57.441.71)

Notes:

Nature and purpose of reserves

i) Deemed equity investment by the Holdina Company

The holding company when transfers benefit to the Company in form of interest free inter corporate deposit, a deemed equity investment account is created. This will be
derecognised on disposal of control in the Company.

ii) Securities premium reserve
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

iii} Retained earninas
Retained earnings represents the profits/ losses that the Company has earned/ incurred till date including gain/(loss) on fair value of defined benefits plans as reduced by
dividends or other distributions paid to the shareholders.

It represents fair value of the financial guarantee given by the Company for no compensation, to the lenders in respect of loans availed by the holding company and
group companies under the control of holding company.

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our audit report of even date

For U B G & COMPANY For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registgation No: 141076W
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Gaurav J. Parekh Sridevi lyengar Inderpal Singh
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 140694 DIN No.: 06981630 DIN No:- 08808066
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 2nd May 2022 — j} Date: 2nd May 2022 Date: 2nd May 2022



HREL Real Estate Limited
(formerly known as HCC Real Estate Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

1 Corporate Information

HREL Real Estate Limited ('the Company') is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in Real estate activities with own or leased property. The registered office of the Company is located at Hincon House,
LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083, India. The Company was incorporated on 15 June 2005 (CIN:U70100MH2005PLC154004).

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
2nd May 2022.

1.1 Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of HREL Real Estate Limited have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified by
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

The financial statements have been prepared under the histerical cost convention with the exception of certain financial assets and liabilities, share based payments and
contingent consideration that are measured at fair values, on an accrual basis of accounting.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

All the assels and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set out in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract, and extends
upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies) within the credit period normally applicable to the respective project.

These financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company's functional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (INR 00,000)
except when otherwise indicated.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS, requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the results of
operation during the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ
from these estimates which are recognised in the period in which they are determined.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation are reviewed on an ongoing basis at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Valuation of investment in/ loans to subsidiaries and other related parties

The Company performs valuation for its investments in equity/ preference shares of subsidiaries for assessing whether there is any impairment in the fair value. When the
fair value of investments in subsidiaries cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including
the discounted cash flow model. Similar assessment is carried for exposure of the nature of loans and interest receivable thereon. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations
of inputs such as expected earnings in future years, liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of these investments.

Deferred tax assets

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets including Minimum Alternate Tax, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income
tax assets will not be realised. The ullimate realisation of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in
which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income,
and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which
the deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will realise the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of the
deferred income tax assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the near term, if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are
reduced.

Defined benefit plans

The cost and present value of the gratuity obligation and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, attrition rate and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment (Tangible assets)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if any. till the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under development and not ready for their intended use, are carried at cost. Cost
includes related acquisition expenses, construction cost, related borrowing cost and other direct allocable overheads.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1 April 2015 of its Property, plant and
equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Property, Plant and Equipment on the date of transition i.e. 1 April 2015.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise of implementation cost for software and other application software acquired / developed for in-house use. These assets are stated at cost,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.




HREL Real Estate Limited
(formerly known as HCC Real Estate Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets except for leasehold improvements is provided on the written down value basis considering the estimated useful lives of the assets on
pro-rata basis. The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation carried out by the management's expert, in order to reflect the actual usage of the
assels. The assel's useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The estimated useful lives are as below:

Office equipment : 20 years

For the above classes of assets, based on internal assessment, management believes that the useful life as given above represents the period over which it expects to
use these assets. Hence the useful lives of these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013

Leaseheld improvements is amortised over the primary period of lease.
In respect of intangible assets, computer software is amortized over the estimated useful life of five years under straight line method on pro-rata basis.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement:
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment
gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and
credit risk exposures.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
(I.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes
its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Equity instruments and financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are
issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at
fair value of the equity instrument.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement:
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially
measured al their fair value and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at a higher of:

* the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirement of Ind AS 109; and

= the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of holding company or group companies under the control of holding company are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions with corresponding debit to equity.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Where the terms of a financial liability is re-negotiated and the Company issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity
swap), a gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss; measured as a difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value
of equity instrument issued.

De recognition of financial liabilities .

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is trealed

as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet If there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis; to realise the assets and setlle the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets or liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no re-classification is made for financial assets which
are categorised as equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets of liabilities that are specifically designated at FVTPL. For financial assets which are debt
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be very
in-frequent. The management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. A
change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies the
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting pericd following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund and superannuation scheme are charged as an
expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. The above benefits are classified as Defined
Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The Company also provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plans, the liabilities of which is determined based on valuations, as at the balance sheet date, made by
an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of gratuity are recognised in the
QCI, in the pericd in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in OCI are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. Past service
cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of plan amendment or curtailment. The classification of the Company's obligation into current and non-
current is as per the actuarial valuation report.

Leave entitlement and compensated absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. Leave entitiement, other than short term
compensated absences, are provided based on a actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in
respect of leave enlitlement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit

and Loss of the period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in which the absences
oceur,

Inventories

Land and construction / development expenses are accumulated under “Project work-in-progress” and the same are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is
lower.

Cost of land purchased / acquired by the Company includes purchase / acquisition price plus stamp duty and registration charges.

Construction / development expenditure includes cost of development rights, all direct and indirect expenditure incurred on development of land/ construction,
attributable interest and financial charges and overheads relating to site management and administration less incidental revenues arising from site operations.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three month or less, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker
regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment of "Real Estate Development”. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating
Segments”, the Company's entire business falls under this one operational segment.

Exceptional items
When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the
performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

i Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Also, the EIR amortisation is included in finance
costs.

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are added
to the cost of such asset to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes, If any) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, net profit or
loss for the year altributable to equity shareholders and weighted number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from operations
Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled when a performance obligation is satisfied, which occurs
when control of goods or services gets transfer to the customer.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. The accounting for
moedifications of contracts invalves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price.
Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, ither as a separate
contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the
standalone selling price.

Interest and other income

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.
Dividend income is recognized when the company's right to receive dividend is established.

Other income is accounted for on accrual basis. Where the receipt of income is uncertain it is accounted for on receipt basis.

Income tax
Income tax comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent it
relates to items directly recognised in equity or in OCI,

Current income tax

Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act,
1961. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all deductible temporary differences between
the financial statements’ carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the
enacted tax rales or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognised in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax ("MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

Leases

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership over the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term except where the lease payments are structured
to increase in line with expected general inflation. Assets acquired on finance lease are capitalised at fair value or present value of minimum lease payment at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are determined based on management's
estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. When appropriate, the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2 Exemption under the Act

The Company has opted not to prepare consolidated financial statements based on exemption available under Rule 6 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) read with Section 128(3) of the Act.

The Company has opted not to prepare consolidated financial statements based on exemption available under Rule 6 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) read with Section 128(3) of the Act.
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3) Property, plant and equipment

Tangible assets

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Office equipment Total
Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2019 2.81 2.81
Additions - -
As at 31 March 2020 2.81 2.81
Additions - -
As at 31 March 2021 2.81 2.81
Additions - -
As at 31 March 2022 2.81 2.81
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 March 2020 1.63 1.63
Depreciation/ amortisation charge 0.18 0.18
As at 31 March 2021 1.81 1.81
Depreciation/ amortisation charge 0.13 0.13
As at 31 March 2022 1.94 1.94
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2021 1.00 1.00
As at 31 March 2022 0.87 0.87
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As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
4 Investment
a) Non current investments
(Face value of Rs. 10 each, unless otherwise stated)
|. Investments in equity share, valued at deemed cost, fully paid up
(i) In subsidiary companies in India
HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited (Refer note 4.3) 1,960.33 1,960.33
100,000 (Previous Year - 100,000) equity shares
Less: Impairment loss provision (10.00) (10.00)
1,950.33 1,950.33
Nashik Township Developers Limited 90.71 90.71
100,000 (Previous Year - 100,000) equity shares
Less: Impairment loss provision (90.71) (80.71)
Powai Real Estate Developers Limited. 5.00 5.00
50,000 (Previous Year - 50,000) equity shares
Less: Impairment loss provision (5.00) (5.00)
HCC Aviation Limited 5.00 5.00
50,000 (Previous Year - 50,000) equity shares
Less: Impairment loss provision (5.00) (5.00)
HCC Realty Limited 5.00 5.00
50,000 (Previous Year - 50,000) equity shares
Less: Impairment loss provision (5.00) (5.00)
(i) In others
Lavasa Corporation Limited [Refer notes 4.1 and 24(a)] 45,222.96 45,222.96
546,842,513 ( Previous Year - 546,842, 513) equity shares
Less: Impairment loss provision (45,222.96) (45,222.96)
(A) 1,950.33 1,950.33
IIl. Investments valued at amortised cost
Investments in preference shares (unquoted)
(i) Fellow subsidiary
HCC Infrastructure Company Limited 1.00 1.00
10,000 (Previous Year - 10,000) 0.1% Non cumulative preference shares
(ii) Others
Lavasa Corporation Limited [Refer notes 4.1 and 24(a)] 7,559.73 7.559.73
22,400,097 (Previous Year- 22,400,097) 6% Cumulative preference shares
Less: Impairment loss provision (7,559.73) (7,559.73)
(B) 1.00 1.00
Ill. Investments in other instruments
(i) In others
Warasgaon Asset Maintenance Limited (Corporate guarantee) [Refer notes 4.1 and 24(b)] 3,513.67 3,513.67
Less: Impairment loss provision (3,513.67) (3,513.67)
(C) 2 =
Total non-current investments [A+B+C] 1,951.33 1,951.33
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As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

4.1 Pursuant to initiation of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('IBC') against Lavasa
Corporation Limited (LCL), the Company has lost control over LCL with effect from 31 August 2018 . Accordingly, LCL and subsidiaries of LCL have
not been treated as subsidiaries post loss of control.

4.2 The Company has pledged the following shares in favour of the lenders as a part of the financing agreements for facilities taken by the related parties
and the Company, as indicated below :

Name of the Company No. of equity shares pledged

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Lavasa Corporation Limited 54,68,42,513 54,68,42,513
HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited 1,00,000 1,00,000

4.3 The Company has created pledge on 70,000 shares {Previous Year: 70,000 shares) and subservient charge on 30,000 shares (Previous Year: 30,000
shares) of HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited held by it towards the inter corporate deposits (ICDs) availed from HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
amounting to Rs.1,564.01 lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (Previous Year: Rs 1,564.01 lakhs).

b) Current investments (quoted)
Investments in mutual funds carried at FVTPL
Nippon India Banking and PSU debt fund
(formerly known as Reliance Banking and PSU debt fund) 0.50 0.48
Current Year 2924.515 units @ 17.2546 each

(Previous Year: 2,924.515 units at NAV of Rs. 15.0857 each)

Total current investments 0.50 0.48
Details:

(i) Market value of quoted investments 0.50 0.48
(ii) Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 1,951.33 1,951.33
(iii) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 56,412.08 56,412.08
(i) Investments carried at deemed cost 1,950.33 1,950.33
(ii) Investments carried at amortised cost 1.00 1.00

(iii) Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 0.50 0.48
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As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Non-current
Loan to related parties (Refer note 24)
Inter corporate deposits 4,322.03 4,322.03
Less: Impairment loss provision (1,561.29) (1,561.29)
Total non-current loans* 2,760.74 2,760.74

The net balance of loan amounting to Rs.2,760.74 lakhs is receivable from HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited. The Company has created
a charge on these loans towards Inter corporate deposit availed from HCC Infrastructure Limited which have an outstanding balance of
Rs.1,564.01 lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (Previous Year: Rs 1,564.01 lakhs).

Current
Loan to related parties (Refer note 24)
Inter corporate deposits 10,202.02 10,202.02
Less: Impairment loss provision (10,199.86) (10,199.86)
Total current loans 2.16 2.16
Total loans 2,762.90 2,762.90
Amount of Loan or % to the total Loans
Advance in the nature of [and Advances in the
Type of Borrower loan Outstanding nature of Loans.
Fellow subsidiaries 2762.91 100%
Other financial assets
Non-current
Interest receivable from
- Related parties (Refer note 24) 6,658.32 6,658.32
Less: Impairment loss provision (6,658.32) (6.658.32)
Total other financial assets - -
Income tax assets (net)
i. The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities:
Income tax assets 2,048.40 2,048.40
Less: Income tax liabilities - -
Total Income tax assets (net) 2,048.40 2,048.40
ii. The gross movement in the Income tax asset/ (liability):
Net non-current income tax assets/ (liabilities) at the beginning 2,048.40 2,048.40
Income tax paid - =
Net non-current income tax assets at the end 2,048.40 2,048.40

iii. Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:
Current income taxes z =
Deferred income taxes - =

Income tax expensesl(income) (net) = B
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As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

iv. Reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the

profit/(loss) before income taxes is as below:

Profit/(Loss) before income tax
Applicable income tax rate
Computed expected tax expense

Effect of expenses not allowed for tax purpose

Effect of income not considered for tax purpose

Reversal of deferred tax assets in absence of reasonable certainty

Income tax (income)/ expense charged to the statement of profit and loss

v. As per local tax regulations and returns filed with the tax authorities, unabsorbed de

307.73 480.54
27.82% 27.82%
2.34 0.09
(87.47) (136.55)
85.12 136.47

preciation can be carried forward indefinitely and

Particulars

31st March 2022

31st March 2021

Assessment year 2019-20 and expiring in financial year 2026-27 28.01 28.01
Assessment year 2020-21 and expiring in financial year 2027-28 219.03 219.03
Assessment year 2021-22 and expiring in financial year 2028-29 1.08 -
Total 248.12 247.04

vi. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised because it is not probable future taxable profit will be available against which the

company can use the benefits there from.

The Company had evaluated and had not elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as
introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019. Based on Management assessment, there is no impact of the new tax

rate on the financial statements for the current vear.

Other assets

Non-current

Capital advances to related party (Refer note 24)
Less : Provision for doubtful advances

Total non-current assets

Current

Advance for land purchases

Less: Impairment loss provision
Balance with government authorities
Other current assets

Less: Impairment loss provision
Deferred lease assets

Total current assets

Total other assets

500.00 500.00
(500.00) (500.00)
15.50 15.50
(15.50) (15.50)
122.10 115.75
305.15 305.15
(305.15) (305.15)
122.10 115.75
122.10 115.75
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As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Inventories
Project work in progress - Land 11,082.76 11,082.76
Less: Impairment loss provision (Refer note 9.1 below) (11,082.76) (11,082.76)
(Valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower)
Total Inventories - -

The Company had inventory consisting of two parcels of land at Dasve village in Lavasa city. National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
(NCLT), vide Order dated 30 August 2018, has admitted an application filed against Lavasa Corporation Limited (LCL) by an operational
creditor and initiated the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 ('IBC'). In
view of this, no transaction in respect of purchase or sale of land are currently taking place at Lavasa city. In view of uncertainties
associated with the outcome of CIRP and consequent development of Lavasa city and in particular around the land parcel owned by the
Company, as a matter of prudence, the Company had impaired the value of inventory aggregating Rs. 11,082.76 lakhs in the previous
year. The Resolution plan is under process and there is no outcome as at the date of adoption of these financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- on current accounts™ 0.44 0.44

Total cash and cash equivalents 0.44 0.44

*Out of the above current accounts held by the company, bank account held with ICICI Bank having a closing balance of Rs. 0.33 lakhs
(31 March 2021: Rs 0.33 Lakhs), has been attached by the Income tax department in relation to income tax assessment proceedings.
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b)

As at
31 March 2022
(Rs. in lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs)

Equity share capital

Authorised share capital

70,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each

(Previcus Year: 70,000,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each)
Total authorised share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital:

66,193,185 (Previous Year : 66,193,185) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

7,000.00 7.000.00
7,000.00 7,000.00
6,619.32 6,619.32
6,619.32 6,619.32

Equity shares As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares Rs. in lakhs No. of shares Rs. in lakhs
Al the beginning of the year 6.61.93.185 6.619.32 6,61,93,185 6,619.32
Movement during the year - E = z
At the end of the year 6,61,93,185 6,619.32 6,61,93,185 6,619.32

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares of
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Hindustan Construction Company Limited 6,61,93,185 100% 6,61.93,185 100%

c¢) Rights and restriction attached to equity shareholders

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value as Rs. 10 each. Every holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. Any dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

d) Bonus shares/ buy back/shares for consideration other than cash issued during past five years:

The Company has neither issued any bonus shares, shares issued for consideration other than cash nor has there been any buy back of shares during past 5 years from reporting

date.

Shareholding of Promoters

Name of Promoters

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

% Change
- 5 during the year
No. of shares held % Holding No. of shares held % Holding
Hindustan Construction Company Limited 6.61,93,185 100.00% 6,61,93,185 100.00% Nil
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As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
12 Borrowings
Nen-current
Loans from related parties (secured) (Refer note 24)
Inter corporate deposits 1,564.01 1,564.01
Loans from related parties (unsecured) (Refer note 24)
Inter corporate deposit from Helding Company 20.427.54 29,427.54
Inter corporate deposit from other related varties 757.43 752.08
Less: Current maturities of unsecured borrowings (Refer note 13) (31,748.97) (31.743.61)

13

Total Loans from related parties

Total non-current borrowings (A)

Interest and repayment details of loan from related parties (secured and unsecured) are as follows:

Inter corparate deposils carries 12.5% effective interast rale per annum and wars repayable on 31 March 2022, However the above inter corporate deposits amounting to Rs.31.743.61 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 31,736,71 lakhs) have not

been repaid as al the balance sheel date.

Loans from related party having outslanding balance of Rs. 1,564.01 lakhs as al 31 March 2022, is secured through a charge crealed on Inier corporate deposits receivable from HRL (Thane) Real Eslale Limited.

Current {unsscured)
Inter corporate deposits
Related parly * (Refer note 24)

Total current borrowings (B)
Total borrowings (A + B)

“ Inler corporate deposils are repayable on 1 April 2022 and carries 12 5% effsctive interest rate per annum.

Other financial liabilities
Non-current
Security deposit
- Related party (Refer note 24)
- Others
Financial iabilly on account of guarantee (Refer note 24)
Total non-current financial liabilitias

Current

Security deposit

Financial liability on account of quarantee (Refer note 24)

Current maturities of unsecured borrowings (Refer note 12)

Interest pavable on inter corporate deposits (Refer note 24)
- Other related parlies

Payable to employses

Total current financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

20.080.46 20.090.41
20,090.46 20,090.41
2005045 2009041
= 314.40
- 314.40
650,00 650.00
4,969.62 4,069.62
3174897 31.743861
175.42 17542
4,38 4.38
37,548.39 37,543.03
37,548.39 37,857.43
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As al As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

Trade payables

Total dues of Micro E ises and Small Enterprises (Refer note 30) = o
Total autstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

- Related parties (Refer note 24) 34.72 34.39
- Others. 15.72 832

Total trade payables 50.44 42.71
Trade payables are non interest bearing and are normally zettled as per the payment terms attached in the contract

Vendor Ageing

Particulars Unbilled & not due Outstanding for followin; riods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears Total

At the Beei of the vear 4.07 0,60 7.14 4,92 2598 4271

5 £ X
{il) Other. 407 0.60 2,14 4,92 2598 42.71
|1ili} Disputed dues — MSME B
|ij|ni puted dues - Others =
At thi d of the vear 3.10 0,40 0.49 714 39.31 50.44

N E =
fii Other: 210 0.40 0.49 714 39.31 50.44

iviDisouted dues - Others i
Total trade pavables 50.44 4271
Other liabilitios

Current

Statutory dues payable 19.64 19.88
Total other current liabilities 19.64 19.88
Total other liabilities 19.64 19.88
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17

17A

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

Other income
Other non-operating income

- Dividend income 0.02 0.04

- Financial guarantee income (Refer note 25) 314.40 490.84

- Provision written back 6.60 -
Total other income 321.02 490.88
Other expenses
Rates and taxes 0.08 0.63
Travel expenses - 0.02
Legal and professional fees 0.16 1.58
Impairment loss provision 8.42 0.31
Balances written off - 0.62
Payment to auditors (Refer note 20A) 4.50 7.00
Miscellaneous 0.00 -
Total other expenses 13.16 10.16
Payment to statutory auditors
Audit fees 4.50 3.00
Other Fees 3 4.00

4.50 7.00
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(i)
(i)

(iii)

20

a)

Loss per share: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net loss as per the statement of profilt and loss atlributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in lakhs) . 307.73 480.54
Weighted average number of equity shares for earning per share computation 6,61,93,185.00 6,61,93,185
Loss per share - Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) 0.46 0.73
Contingent liabilities and commitments
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Income tax assessments matters 4,459.56 4,459.56
Corporate guarantees/ put options given for
Holding company 9,67,726.54 9,69,155.04
Fellow subsidiaries [Also refer note (v) below] - 6,145.84
Others [Also refer note (iii) below] 6,06,964.65 5,76,470.00

The Company had provided corporate guarantees and put options aggregating Rs. 6,06,964.65 lakhs to the lenders of its erstwhile subsidiaries, Lavasa
Corporation Limited (LCL) and Warasgaon Assets Maintenance Limited (WAML) in respect of amounts borrowed by these entities. LCL and WAML were admitted
under the Corporate Insolvency and Resolution Process (CIRP) in accordance with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) dated 30 August 2018 and 20
December 2018, respectively and Resolution Professionals (RP) were been appointed by the Committee of Creditors (CoC) of the lenders of respective
companies. The lenders, to whom these corporate guarantees and put options were furnished, have filed their claims with Resolution Professional and have also
invoked the corporate guarantee/ put options issued by the Company. The National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide its order dated 26 February 2020,
have approved the request of lenders of LCL and WAML to consolidate LCL, WAML and Dasve Convention Center Limited (a subsidiary of LCL) and thereby get
better valuation on liquidation. The Resolution Professional is in the process of formulating a resolution plan including identifying potential resolution applicant. The
liability of the Company shall be determined once the debts due to these lenders are settled by Resolution Professional upon completion of the IBC process.
Pending the outcome of the resolution process, no provision has been considered necessary in the financial statements by the management, as impact, if any is
currently unascertainable.

During the previous year, Company had received a corporate guarantee invocation letter from the Lender of two group companies, Dhule Palesner Operations
Maintenance Limited (DPOML) and HCC Power Limited (HPL), vide both letters dated 10 February 2020. The amount demanded by the lender aggregates Rs.
6,145.84 lakhs. At present, DPOML and HPL are in discussion with the lender regarding settlement of such outstanding loan and interest thereon. HCC
Infrastructure Limited, the parent company of these two group companies, have contractually agreed to reimburse to the Company, any cash outflow that the
Company may have to incur in relation to above invocation. Accordingly, the Company has not booked any liability/ provision towards the above event, as at 31

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

The National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (NCLT) vide order dated 30 August 2018, has admitted an application filed against an erstwhile subsidiary, Lavasa
Corporation Limited (LCL) by an operational creditor and initiated the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 ('IBC'). In view of uncertainties associated with the outcome of CIRP and as a matter of prudence, the Company had recognised impairment provision of Rs
67,048.74 lakhs for its exposure in LCL during the financial year 2018-19 -




HREL Real Estate Limited
(formerly known as HCC Real Estate Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

b) The Naticnal Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (NCLT) vide order dated 20 December 2018, has admitted an application filed against an erstwhile step down
subsidiary, Warasgaon Asset Maintenance Limited (WAML) by an operational creditor and initiated the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('IBC'). In view of uncertainties associated with the outcome of CIRP and as a matter of prudence, the Company had
recognised impairment provision of Rs 3,513.67 for its exposure in WAML during the year 2018-19

21 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Transactions

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship
A) Holding Company
Hindustan Construction Company Limited (HCC)

B) Subsidiaries incorporation
HCC Aviation Limited India
HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited India
Nashik Township Developers Limited India
Powai Real Estate Developers Limited India
HCC Realty Limited India
Lavasa Corporation Limited A* India

C) Subsidiaries of Holding Company

HCC Aviation Limited

HRL Township Developers Limited (upto 31 May 2018)
Maan Township Developers Limited (upto 31 May 2018)
HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited

Nashik Township Developers Limited

Charosa Wineries Limited (upto 6 February 2019)
Powai Real Estate Developers Limited

D) Other related parties

Hincon Finance Limited

Warasgaon Asset Maintenance Limited **

Dhule Palesner Operations and Maintenance Limited
HCC Power Limited

Rhapsody Commercial Space Limited A*

A Considered subsidiary as per the Act; however, classified as subsidiary upto 30 August 2018 under Ind AS. Also refer note 4.1.

B. Key Management Personnel

Mr. Surendra Agarwal (upto 23 August 2019) Chief Finance Officer
Mr. Avinash Harde (Upto 31 July 2019) Director
Ms. Sridevi lyengar (from 31 August 2018) Director
Mr. Hamshie Rodrigues (from 31 July 2019) Director
Mr. Inderpal Singh Chilotre(Appointed July 27,2020) Director

C. Transactions and balances with related parties during the year :

Nature of transactions Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs)

Transactions during the year
Financial guarantee income

Hindustan Construction Company Limited 251.99 45547
Dhule Palesner Operations and Maintenance Limited 32.62 23.25
HCC Power Limited 29.79 12.12

314.40 490.84

Inter corporate deposit given during year
HRL Township Developers Limited - -
HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited - 017

Nashik Township Developers Limited - 0.18
HCC Aviation Limited - 0.06
Powai Real Estate Developers Limited - 0.07
HCC Realty Limited 0.00 0.07

0.00 0.55
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Year ended Year ended -
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Inter corporate deposit received back
HRL Township Developers Limited - 0.53
- 0.53
Inter corporate deposit taken during year
Western Securities Limited 5.36 5.96
HRL Township Developers Limited - 7.30
Maan Township Developers Limited 0.05 0.09
Panchkutir Developers Limited - -
Hindustan Construction Company Limited - 0.17
5.41 13.52
Inter corporate deposit repaid
Panchkutir Developers Limited - 0.18
- 0.18
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balances at the year end (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Loans receivable
HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited ** 4,170.16 4,170.16
Nashik Township Developers Limited * 150.97 150.97
Lavasa Corporation Limited * 7,651.33 7,651.33
HCC Aviation Limited * 1,584.30 1,584.30
Rhapsody Commercial Space Limited * 1,064.25 1,064.25
Powai Real Estate Developers Limited * 1.53 1.53
HCC Realty Limited 2.16 2.16
14,524.71 14,524.70
* An impairment loss allowance for the amount has been recongised
** An impairment loss allowance has been recognised to the extent of Rs.NIL lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. Nil).
Capital Advances
Lavasa Corporations Limited * 500.00 500.00
* An impairment loss allowance for the amount has been recongised during previous year
Loan payables
Hindustan Construction Company Limited 49,480.62 49,480.62
Highbar Technologies Limited 626.26 626.26
Panchkutir Developers Limited 118.73 118.73
Western Securities Limited 11.33 5.96
HCC Infrastructure Company Limited 1,564.01 1,564.01
Maan Township Developers Limited 31.18 31.13
HRL Township Developers Limited 7.30 7.30
51,839.43 51,834.01
Outstanding interest receivable
HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited* 3.15 3.15
Nashik Township Developers Limited * 1.85 1.85
Lavasa Corporation Limited * 6,215.25 6,215.25
Rhapsody Commercial Space Limited * 438.05 438.05
Powai Real Estate Developers Limited * 0.02 0.02
6,658.32 6,658.32
* An impairment loss allowance for the amount has been recongised during previous year
Outstanding interest payable
Panchkutir Developers Limited 21.22 21.22
Highbar Technologies Limited 154.20 154.20
175.42 175.42
Trade payables
Highbar Technologies Limited 31.07 31.07
Steiner India Limited 3.32 3.32
34.39 34.39
Corporate guarantee given and included in investments
Lavasa Corporation Limited * 3,442.16 3,442.16
Warasgaon Asset Maintenance Limited * 3,613.67 3,513.67
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2)

3)

* An impairment loss allowance for the amount has been recongised during previous year

Security deposit payable
Highbar Technologies Limited

Balances at the year end

Financial liability on account of guarantee
Lavasa Corporation Limited

Warasgaon Asset Maintenance Limited

Hindustan Construction Company Limited

Dhule Palesner Operations and Maintenance Limited
HCC Power Limited

Deemed equity investment by holding company
Hindustan Construction Company Limited

Contingent liability on account of corporate guarantees/ put option
Lavasa Corporation Limited

Warasgaon Asset Maintenance Limited

Hindustan Construction Company Limited

Dhule Palesner Operations and Maintenance Limited

HCC Power Limited

Other outstanding arrangements

Investments in shares of companies pledged in favor of lenders
Lavasa Corporation Limited
HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited

6,955.83 6,955.83
650.00 650.00
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
1,886.97 1,886.97
3,082.65 3,082.65
- 252.01
- 32.62
- 29.79
4,969.62 5,284.05
13,803.92 13,803.92
3,71,727.96 3,22,094.00
2,35,236.69 2,54,376.00
9,67,726.54 9,69,155.04
- 4,145.84
- 2,000.00
18,09,927.87 15,51,770.88

Number of shares Number of shares

54,68,42,513

100,000

54,68,42,513
100,000

HCC Infrastructure Limited have contractually agreed to reimburse to the Company, any cash outflow that the Company may have to incur in relation to invocation
of guarantees by the lenders, towards the borrowings availed by Dhule Palesner Operations and Maintenance Limited and HCC Power Limited..

Charge has been created on the net balance of loan receivable from HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited towards the inter corporate deposits availed from

HCC Infrastructure Limited.
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22 Financial instruments
The fair value of the financial assets are included at amounts at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

(a) Fair value of cash and short term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts largely due
to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

(b) Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of
the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses of these receivables.

A. Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and the fair value of financial instruments by each category As at 31 March 2022

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Financial Financial assets /| Financial assets/ | Total carrying | Total fair value
assets / liabilities at fair | liabilities at fair value
liabilities at value through |value through OCI
amortised profit or loss
costs
Assets
Investments 1.851.33 0.50 - 1,851.83 1,851.83
Loans 14,524.05 - - 14,5624.05 14,524.05
Cash and cash equivalents 0.44 - - 0.44 0.44
Liabilities
Borrowings 51,839.43 - - 51,839.43 51,839.43
Other financial liabilities 5,799.42 - - 5,799.42 5,799.42
Trade payables 50.44 - - 50.44 50.44
The carrying value and the fair value of financial instruments by each category as at 31 March 2021 :
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Financial Financial assets /| Financial assets!/ | Total carrying | Total fair value
assets / liabilities at fair | liabilities at fair value
liabilities at value through | value through OCI
amortised profit or loss
costs

Assets
Investments 1,951.33 0.48 - 1,951.81 1,951.81
Loans 14,524.05 - - 14,524.05 14,524.05
Cash and cash equivalents 0.44 - - 0.44 0.44
Liabilities
Borrowings 51,834.00 - - 51,834.00 51,834.00
Other financial liabilities 6,113.82 - - 6,113.82 6,113.82
Trade payables 42.71 - - 42.71 42.71

B. Fair value hierarchy :

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
(Rs. in lakhs)

31 March 2022
Level 2

Particulars 31 March 2021

Level 2

Level 1 Level 3 Level 1 Level 3

Assets

Investments 0.50 - - 0.48 = =
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23 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of
financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types
of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Major Financial instruments affected by market risk includes
loans and borrowings.

a. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s total debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables
held constant, the Company’s loss before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars As at
aH a;zif!a;::szuzz 31 March 2021
Rs. in lakhs
Increase in basis points 50 basis points 50 basis points
Effect on loss before tax, increase by - 112.30
Decrease in basis points 50 basis points 50 basis points
Effect on loss before tax, decrease by - 112.30

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a significantly higher
volatility than in prior years.

b. Foreign currency risk
The Company does not have any balances outstanding in foreign currency and consequently the Company is not exposed to foreign exchange risk.

c. Equity price risk
The Company has not invested in listed securities except in mutual funds, thus the equity price risk of the Company is minimal.

(i) Credit Risk
The Gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of any impairment losses recognised represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk

is as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Investments 1,951.83 1,951.81
Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances 0.44 0.44
Other financial assets - -
Loans 2,762.90 2,762.90
Total 4,715.16 4,715.14

(iii) Liguidity risk
The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

As at 31 March 2022 (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars On demand Contractual Cash flow Total

0-12 Months 1-5years More than 5 years
Borrowings (including current maturities) - 51,839.43 - - 51,839.43
Other financials liabilities - 5,799.42 - - 5,799.42
Trade and other payables - 50.44 - - 50.44
Total - 57,689.30 - - 57,689.30
As at 31 March 2021 : (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars On demand Contractual Cash flow Total

0-12 Months 1-5years More than 5 years
Borrowings (including current maturities) - 51,834.00 - - 51,834.00
Other financials liabilities - 5,799.42 314.40 - 6,113.82
Trade and other payables - 42.71 - - 42.71
Total - 57,676.14 314.40 - 57,990.53

24 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The Company strives to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that they can maximise returns for the shareholders and benefits for other stake
holders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or adjust the dividend payment to shareholders (if permitted).
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors its capital using the gearing ratio which is total debt divided by total capital plus total debt.

As at
Particulars As at 31_March 2022 31 March 2021
Rs. in lakhs 5
. Rs. in lakhs
Total debts (non current and current) (a) 52,014.85 52,009.42
Total equity (b) (50,822.39) (51.130.12)
Gearing ratio (in times) (a/b) (1.02) (1.02)
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25 This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash and cash equivalents (0.44) (0.44)
Current borrowings (including current maturities) 51,839.43 51,834.01
Interest payable on borrowings 175.42 175.42
Net Debt 52,014.41 52,009.00

Year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Other Assets Liabilities from Financing Activities Total
Cash ‘and cash Liquid Investments Non-Cur_rent Current Borrowings
equivalents Borrowings
Net Debt as at 31 March 2021 (0.44) - - 48,827.31 48,826.87
Cash Flows - - - 541 5.41
Interest Expense - - - - -
Interest paid - - - - -
Net Debt as at 31 March 2022 {0.44) - - 48,832.72 48,832.28
Year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars Other Assets Liabilities from Financing Activities Total
Cash and cash P T Non-Current Current Borrowings
: Liquid Investments =
equivalents Borrowinas
Net Debt as at 31 March 2020 - - - 48,813.96 48,813.96
Cash Flows (0.44) - - 13.34 12.91
Interest Expense - - - - -
Interest paid - - - - -
Net Debt as at 31 March 2021 (0.44) - - 48,827.31 48,826.88

26 The Company is principally engaged in a single business seqment i.e. Real estate activity, with owned or leased property.

27 The Company has accumulated losses of Rs.1,12,062.62 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs 1,12,370.35 lakhs) , resulting in negative net worth of Rs. 50,822.39 lakhs ( Previous Year: Rs
51,130.12) as at 31 March 2022. The Company's current liabilities exceeds its current assets by Rs 57,583.73 lakhs (Previous Year:Rs. 57,577.20 lakhs) as at that date . Although these
events or conditions may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, the management holds the view that the Company will realise its assets and
discharge liabilities in the normal course of business. Based on the evaluation of the current situation and business prospects, management is confident of revival of operations.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company is a going concern.

28 In view of company’s poor financial position, in spite of its best effort to get vacancies of KMPs filled during the year under review, the company didn't get suitable candidates, therefore the

positions remained vacant.

29 The outbreak of COVID-19 had disrupted regular business operations of the Company due to the lock down restrictions and other emergency measures imposed by the Government from
time to time. The operations of the Company have started recovering from the economic slowdown caused by COVID-19 pandemic and reaching normalcy. The management has taken
into account the possible impacts of known events, upto the date of the approval of these financial statements, arising from COVID-19 pandemic on the carrying value of the assets and
liabilities as at 31 March 2022. While the Company continues to closely monitor the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, there exists uncertainty in estimating the future impact of COVID-19
pandemic on the Company and, accordingly, the actual impact in the future may be different from those presently estimated.

30 Analysis of Financial Ratios

Nature of Ratio Parameters 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21|% of change in Ratio*
(a) Current Ratio Current Assets
0.00 0.00 5.33%
Current Liabi
{b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt
e e -1.02 -1.02 0.62%
Shareholders Equity
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio
(1) Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating
expenses like depreciation and other amortizations + Interest + other
adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc,
(2) Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments. Earnings available for
Debt services(1)
“Net Profit after tax” means reported amount of “Profit / (loss) for the| e 0.00 0.00 0.00%
period” and it does not include items of other comprehensive income. Debt Service cost (2)
(d) Return on Equity Ratio* PAT- Dividend to Pref.
shareholders
{Average shareholders equity is derived from opening & closing equity| .0.40% -0.62% -35.50%
shares) Average Shareholders
Equity
{e) Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold
oy TS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Average Invetory
{f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales
e e 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Average Trade
Receivables
{g) Trade payables turnover ratio Nat Credit Purchases
SR AT T 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Average Trade ’ ;
Payables
Net Sales
------------- 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Working Capital
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(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit
............. 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Net Sales
(j) Return on Capital employed™ EBIT
,,,,,,,,,,,, -0.61% -0.94% -35.57%
Capital Employed
(k) Return on investment™ Net Income
-0.61% -0.94% -35.57%
Investment

* Change in ratio higher than 25% is mainly due to decrease in profit by 36% on account of decrease in financial guarantee income (Ind AS) reduced in current year by RS. 169.86 (35%)

31 Recent accounting update

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable to the Company from

1 April 2022.

This is a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our audit report of even date

For U B G & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regisfgation No: 141076W

Membership No.: 140694

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd May 2022

S Cudn

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

/
A
[
N

Sridevi lvenaar Inderpal Singh
Director Director
DIN No:- 06981630  DIN No:- 08808068

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd May 2022  Date: 2nd May 2022



To,

U B G & Company,

Chartered Accountants

404, Skyline Wealth Space,
Above D Mart, Premier Road,
Vidyavihar West, Mumbai - 86

Dear Sir,

Sub: Management Representations Letters

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial
statements of our Company HREL Real Estate Limited for the year ended for the purpose of
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of our company as of 31st March, 2022 and of the results of the
operations for the year ended.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the fair representation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting standards and other recognized accounting practices and
policies generally accepted in India.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the implementation and operations of accounting
and internal control systems that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving management or other
employees who have a significant role in the concern internal controls over financial
reporting. In addition, we have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving any
other employees in which the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
We have no knowledge of any allegations of financial improprieties, including fraud or
suspected fraud, (regardless of the source or form and including without limitation, any
allegations by "whistleblowers") which could result in a misstatement of the financial
statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of our firm.



There has been no non-compliance with laws and regulations which could have a material

impact on the financial statements.

There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit. We confirm,

to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations:

ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The accounting policies are in accordance with the generally accepted accounting

standards in India. The accounting policies and practices which are material or

critical in determining the results of operations for the year or financial position are

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on

accrual basis.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS & REGULATIONS:

i

We are not aware of any actual or suspected noncompliance with laws and
regulations which can have a material impact in the preparation of the financial
statements.

We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance with the
requirements of regulatory or governmental authorities, including their financial
reporting requirements, and there have been no communications from regulatory
agencies or government representatives concerning investigations or allegations of
non-compliance or deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company has not made any improper

payments or payments which are illegal or against any regulations.

The Company has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements which could
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.
There has been no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-
compliance.

INFORMATION PROVIDED AND COMPLETENESS OF INFORMATION AND TRANSACTIONS:

We have provided you with:

1.

Access to all information, on a timely basis, of which we are aware that is relevant to
the preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and
other matters

Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit
and

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence; and

All the required support to discharge your duties as auditors.



INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLSTRUCTURE:

1. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.
2 As required under section 134(5) of the Act, we are responsible for establishing and

maintaining adequate and effective internal financial controls and the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements and, in particular, the assertions to you
on the internal financial controls in accordance with the Indian GAAP.

3. There is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed
assets and for the sale of goods and services. There is no failure to correct any major
weakness in internal control system.

4. We have disclosed to you all changes/deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls over financial reporting identified as part of our assessment,
including separately disclosing to you all such deficiencies that we believe to be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal controls over financial
reporting.

REGISTERS, MINUTES AND CONTRACTS:

1. The Minutes of the meetings of the Shareholders and Directors and the Registers
required to be maintained under the Companies Act are complete and authentic.

2. We have made available to you all significant registers, contracts and agreements.
Further we have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of shareholders,
directors and committees of directors.

3.  All matters required to be recorded in the registers and minute books of the Company
have been, and are, recorded correctly.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Transaction with the related parties and related amounts receivable or payable,
including sales, purchase, loans, interest, remuneration, transfers, leasing arrangements,
and guarantees, have been properly recorded and disclosed in the financial statements.

We confirm the completeness of the list of related parties and relationships as stated in
Note 33 of the financial statements, and information provided regarding the identification
of such related parties.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

The net book value represents all the Property, plant and equipment owned by the
Company wherever situated.

Adequate records as required under Companies Auditors’ Report Order, 2016 showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets are not currently
available with the Company. The company is under process of preparing the adequate
records.



INVENTORIES:

The Company had inventory consisting of two parcels of land at Dasve village in Lavasa city.
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (NCLT), vide Order dated 30th August 2018, has
admitted an application filed against Lavasa Corporation Limited (LCL) by an operational
creditor and initiated the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 ('IBC').

In view of this, no transaction in respect of purchase or sale of land are currently taking place
at Lavasa city.

In view of uncertainties associated with the outcome of CIRP and consequent development
of Lavasa city and in particular around the land parcel owned by the Company, as a matter
of prudence, the Company had impaired the value of inventory aggregating Rs. 11,082.76
lakhs in the previous year.

The Resolution plan is under process and there is no outcome as at the date of adoption of
these financial statements.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES:

The Current Assets, Loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of
business at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

The Inter-Corporate Deposits given to the Group Companies as per Related Party
Disclosures in Financial Statements have a value on realization and will be realized in the

due course of time.

CASH & BANK BALANCES:

Balances in Current account and Term Deposit accounts shown as under are locked as the
banks had freezed the accounts. We confirm that the balances are considered good and will
be realizable in normal course of business.

Bank Name Amount (Rs.)
Union Bank of India 11,029.97
ICICI Bank Limited* 33,190.77%

Total 44,220.74

*Out of the above current accounts held by the company, bank account held with ICICI Bank
having a closing balance of Rs. 0.33 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs 0.33 lakhs), has been attached
by the Income tax department in relation to income tax assessment proceedings.




INVESTMENTS:

Pursuant to initiation of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('IBC') against Lavasa Corporation Limited (LCL), the
Company has lost control over LCL with effect from 31 August 2018. Accordingly, LCL and
subsidiaries of LCL have not been treated as subsidiaries post loss of control.

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

There are no disputed amounts of sales tax, income tax, custom duty, wealth tax, service
tax, excise duty and cess for more than 6 months as on 31st March, 2022 other than below

mentioned:-

Name  of | Nature of | Amount Period to | Due date Date of
the statute | the dues (INR in | which  the Payment
Lakhs) amount

relates
Income Tax | Interest on | 19.88 Lakhs | March 2018 | 30" April, | Not paid till
Act, 1961 TDS to 2018 date
November
2018

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax,
cess, Goods and Services Tax and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 30th
September, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
(Annexure-1)

CONTINGENT LIABILITY:

There are no contingent liabilities as at year end other than those disclosed in the
Financial Statements.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS:

All material transactions have been adequately disclosed and full provision has been made
in the financial statements for all claims and losses of material amount which have resulted
or maybe expected to result from events which occurred or from commitments which were
entered into on or before the date of balance sheet.



No personal expenses have been charged to revenue accounts. Except as disclosed in the
financial statements, the results for the period were not materially affected by:

e Transactions of a nature not usually undertaken by the Company;
e Circumstances of an exceptional or non-recurring nature;
e Changes in accounting policies.

GOING CONCERN:

The Company had provided corporate guarantees and put options aggregating
Rs.6,06,964.65 lakhs (Previous Year Rs.5,76,470.00 lakhs) to the lenders of its erstwhile
subsidiaries, Lavasa Corporation Limited (LCL) and Warasgaon Assets Maintenance Limited
(WAML) in respect of amounts borrowed by these entities.

LCL and WAML were admitted under the Corporate Insolvency and Resolution Process
(CIRP) in accordance with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) dated 30 August
2018 and 20 December 2018, respectively and Resolution Professionals (RP) were been
appointed by the Committee of Creditors (CoC) of the lenders of respective companies.

The lenders, to whom these corporate guarantees and put options were furnished, have
filed their claims with Resolution Professional and have also invoked the corporate
guarantee/ put options issued by the Company.

The National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide its order dated 26 February 2020,
have approved the request of lenders of LCL and WAML to consolidate LCL, WAML and
Dasve Convention Centre Limited (a subsidiary of LCL) and thereby get better valuation on
liquidation.

The Resolution Professional is in the process of formulating a resolution plan including
identifying potential resolution applicant.

The liability of the Company shall be determined once the debts due to these lenders are
settled by Resolution Professional upon completion of the IBC process.

Pending the outcome of the resolution process, no provision has been made in the financial
statements as the impact, if any is currently unascertainable.

DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND ENTERPRISES:

We certify that no amount of interest is due to micro, small and medium enterprises.



GENERAL:

We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-
compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non- compliance.

The financial statements are free of material mis-statements, including omissions.

DEFERRED TAX:

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised because it is not probable future taxable
profit will be available against which the company can use the benefits there from.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

The COVID-19 pandemic has severely disrupted business operations due to lockdown and
other emergency measures imposed by the various governments. The Company has
evaluated the impact of this pandemic on its business operations, liquidity and the
recoverability and carrying values of its assets as at the Balance Sheet date and based on the
management's review of current indicators and economic conditions there is no material
impact on the profit for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Other than above no events or transactions have occurred since the date of Balance Sheet
or are pending that would have a material effect on the financial statements at that date or
for the period then ended, other than those reflected or fully disclosed in the books of
account.

AUDIT REPORT & CARO Related:

1. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding that the intermediary shall
whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
ultimate beneficiaries.

2. No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entities including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding
that such company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.



3. No dividend were declared/paid during the year by the Company, therefore question
of compliance of section 123 of the Act does not arise.

4. None of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

5. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

6. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause3 (xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

For HREL Real Estate Limited

[

Director
Mumbai, Dated: 02.05.2022




